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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Taraashna Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Taraashna Services Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019 and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the prdvisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting [rauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriale accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
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accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure - A statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2019 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

Place of Signature: Gurugram For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Date: 1 May 2019 Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. —021776N

q\/
Rajeev Bhatia
) Partner
Membership No. 089018
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report
of even date of Taraashna Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019)

Fixed Assets

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets on the basis of available information.

b) The Fixed Asset of the Company was physically verified as at the year-end by the management, which in
our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
According to the information and explanations given to us no material discrepancy was noticed on such
verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property during the period under

audit. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Inventories

(ii) The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus,
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Loans granted by company

(iii) The company has not granted loans to any party covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Compliance of Section 185 and 186 of The Act

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any loan, guarantee or security and not made any investment during the period under audit. Thus,
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Acceptance of Deposits

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Maintenance of Cost records
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(vi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013 for the services of the Company.

Payment of Applicable Taxes

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including income-tax, goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional
taxes and other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities in India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by
us, during the period under audit, there are no dues of income tax or any other applicable statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Dues to a Financial Institution or bank or debenture holder

{viii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and financial
institutions.

Initial Public Offer

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

Fraud by the Company or on the Company

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Cumpany by ils ulficers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

Managerial Remuneration

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid /
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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Nidhi Company

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Related Party Transactions

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

Preferential Allotment or Private Placement

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made private placement of shares u/s 42 of the Companies Act
2013, during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

Non — Cash Transactions

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

Registration with RBI

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
Place of Signature: Gurugram For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Dated: 1 May 2019 Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registgation No.: 021776N

Rajeev Bhatia
Partner
M. No. 089018



Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

1406, RG Trade Tower, Netaji Subhash Place,

Pitampura, Delhi-110 034
011-45131008, 9810057854
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 (f) under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report
of even date of Taraashna Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Taraashna Services Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over tinancial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporling issued Ly the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place of Signature: Gurugram For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Dated: 1 May 2019 Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

&
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Rajeev Bhatia
Partner
M. No. 089018



T hoa Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limiced)
Balance Sheet as a¢ March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)
Particulars Notes A Gy J-JC
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 126.95 200.28 115.68
Other intangible assets 5 1.35 4.49 12.20
Financial assets
Loans 6 10.74 834 14.98
Other financial assets 7 1,868.96 1,628.06 821.06
Current tax assets (net) 8 819.43 781.17 524.76
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 224.75 371.50 56.33
Other non-current assets 10 3.60 28.71 17.88
Total non current assets 3,055,78 3,022.58 1,562.89
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 1 586.07 1,158.46 589.85
Cash and cash equivalents 12 978.48 1,496.02 1,191.92
Other bank balances 13 1,657.05 722.16 1,054.71
Loans 14 16.31 18.41 9.58
Other financial assets 15 39.11 T 1092 24.88
Other current assets 16 124.89 69.53 54.77
Total current assets 3,401.91 3,475.50 2,925.71
TOTAL ASSETS 6,457.69 6,498.05 4,488.60
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17 1,604.00 1,244.03 908.27
Other equity 18 3,575.45 1,098.48 919.67
Total equity 5,179.45 2,342.51 1,827.94
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 18.12 446,62 319.63
Provisions 20 127.711 97.62 78.31
‘Total non current liabilities 145.83 544.24 397.94
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 017 8.87 236.58
Trade payables 22
total oustanding dues of
micro enterprises and small
cnterpriscs 221
total oustanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small
enterprises 222 124.70 1,654.67 1,203.80
Other financial liabilities 23 886.89 1,770.94 748.46
Other current liabilities 24 85.99 163.83 53.23
Provisions 25 34.66 12.98 20.65
Total current liabilitics 1,132.41 3,611,29 2,262,712
Total labilitics 1,278.24 4,155.53 2,660.66
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 6,457.69 6,498.05 4,488.60

The sccompanying notes are an inmEral pict of the financial 5

B
This is the balance sheet referced 1o m our report of even date.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates.
Chuttered Accotntants
Fiem's Registration No.: 021776N

T4
Raje
Partner
M.No, k]
Place: Gurugram

Date: 01 May 2019

DIN: 08335310

I“. 5
Prashant Sharma

(Company Secretary)
{M No. - A24373)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Taraashna Services Limited

LD o

H P Singh

(Director)
DIN: 00333754

M2

{Chief Financial Officer)

ay Thakkar



Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as T'araashna Services Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
¢ S March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
L Income
Revenue from operations 26 6,457.36 5,335.46
Other income 27 371.08 50.33
Total income 6,828.44 5,385.79
II.  Expenses
Employee benefits expense 28 3,532.77 3,041.42
Finance costs 29 244.37 234.24
Depreclation and amortisation expense 30 109.81 68.27
Other expenses 31 1,684.72 3,048.96
Total expenses 5,571.67 6,392.89
III.  Profit/(Loss) before tax (II-I) 1,256.77 (1,007.10)
IV. Tax expense
Current tax 270.67 -
Deferted tax expense/(credit) 144.22 (319.16)
Earlier years taxes/(tefunds) - (3.88)
Total tax expense 414.89 (323.04)
V.  Net Profit/ (loss) for the year 841.88 (684.06)
V1.  Other comprehensive income/ (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 8.72 13.70
Income tax relating to these items (2.54) (3.99)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 6.18 9.71
VII. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 848.06 (674.35)
VIIl. Earnings/(Loss) per equity share (EPS)
Basic/diluted EPS per share (%) 32 5.79 6.16)

The accom@n_zinﬁ notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Assodiates.
Chartered Accountants
's Registration No.: 021776N

P :
M.No.089018

Place: Gurugram
Date: 01 May 2019

For and on behalf of the }-30a.|:d of I-)irectors of
Taraashna Services Limited

(CEO & WD)
DIN: 08335310
Prashant Sharma
(Company Secretary)
(M No. - A24373)

P
H P Singh
(Director)

DIN: 00333754
o) Mfay Thakkas

(Chief Financial Officer)



Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

3 For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
¢ March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax 1,256.77 (1,007.10)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 109.81 68.27
Interest pald on botrowings 155.25 11734
Loss on dispoeal of tangible assets 0.79 12.92
Operating Profit/(loss) Before Working Capital Changes 1,522.62 (808.57)
Adj 15 for (inoreass)/ d in operaling assets:
‘Trade receivables 57239 (568.61)
Loans ©031) @19)
Other bank balances (1,175.79) (474.45)
Other current financial asscte (28.19) 13.96
Other current and non-current assets (30.25) (25.59)
Adjusiments for (increass)/ da in operating Kabilities:
Trade payables (1,529.97) 45087
Other current financial liabilitics (620.83) 788.47
Other current liabilities (77.84) 110.61
Provisions 60.49 2534
Movement in Operating Assets and Liabilities (2,830.29) 31840
Cash g d from operati (1,307.67) (490.17)
Less: Income tax paid (308.94) (252.52)
Net cash used in operating activitles A) (1,616.61) (742.69)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (35.26) (164.64)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 1.15 6.57
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (34.11) (158.07)
€. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Tesue of equity share capital (net of issue expenses) 1,988.86 1,188.92
Repayment of long term borrowings (net) (1,200.59) (326.91)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 508.86 687.66
Repayment of short term borrowings (nef) (8.70) (227.72)
Interest paid on borrowings (155.25) (117.09)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 1,133.19 1.204.86
Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (517.33) 304.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,496.02 1,191.92
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 978.48 1,496.02
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash (517.53) 30410
flow statement
The sccompanying notes ace an integral part of the financial statements,
Fos Rajeev Bhatia & Asanciates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chirtered Accounmns Taraashna Services Limited

's Registration No.: 021776N
‘

i MW q\ LLP Singh
(Chief Bxecutive Officer & Whole Time Director) (Director)

Raj

Pa

M.No.08Y018 DIN: 08335310 DIN: 00333754
el A

Place: Gurugram Prashahit Shiftma ) Abhay Thakkar

Date; 01 May 2019 (Company Secretacy) (Chief Financial Officer)

(M No. - A24373)



(cLevzv - ON W)

(399930 [PPUTTL] JTD) (fxma19g uedwon) 6102 L2 10 =%
Teqqey [ £¥y N S JUBYSES] weIdnIns) 20
AM_, = w & P.\i.
SN Y o
AT .
LEEE00 ‘NI 01ESEER0 :NIA . 810680 0N
(so1271¢7) ( ® OHD) TirEq
9SS d H (A a2t 0 fey
v /
g S ﬁ\mﬂ [ z
) NOLLIZ0 ¥ON UORERSISdY sy
PONWY] SIDTAIDG BUYSTRIL], SITHONOY pamirey))
3O S1032931(] JO PITOF AP JO J[PYSq TO PUE 30, syERossy g TREHg 429lvy 304
‘SIIIwwS [Epurny o9 Jo wed [edaur ue o1 ssou Furluedwodrde oqT,
£h'SLSE 86195 mv.n—.e.n 6102 “TE YOUEIN JE SE SduETeg
#rin - [Z19] $9503dxa onss| areqg SS]
€0°09°1 - €0°09°1 ref o Supmp UOBIPPY
819 319 - seaf 51p 10§ SwoonT 2aI15UIGAIdwWod PP
88°1+8 88°118 - Jea£ o1 30§ (S507T) /1301
81°860°T (80982) 95 ¥8E°T 8102 ‘TE WUEW 3¢ se durreq
91'¢s8 = 91°¢s8 Tez4 3t SUPTP TORIPPY
L6 1.6 - Teaf 5 10] Swooor 2a1s0agRIdwWod PR
{50+89) (50+89) ) Feof o 303 ($507T) /3g0OId
L9616 LT88E ov'1€S 1102 1 dy 3¢ se ouereg
sGurwes paureldy wnrwsd sonUNIIg
01, snjdins pue saasasay Foned
ambarpo g
007091 L6°65€ €0VHTL 9L'SEE LT'806 Tende) areyg dymby
6102 1€ 9% Feah a1 Supnp 8102 1€ ek >p Sunnp LI0Z T
e se Jouereg rendes aseys Hmbo ur a3uey) | gorepy i se souereqg | rendes veys Hmbo wroSuey) | wdy I se oveeg semonIeg
endes oreys mby v

(ss1e33p0 pAEIS SN ‘SAP] OF s93dmy BT JVNOWE [Iy)
6102 ‘1€ Yoe Hmby m sa3uey) yo ywwnng
(paaror] MpeAng 8301AISG TUYsTEIE], ST UMOW APoWI0,]) PINET] SI01AIIG TUYsEEIE],



Taraashna Setvices Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2019

Company ovetview/Cotporate information

Taraashna Services Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incotporated in India under Companies Act, 1956.
The Company was originally incorporated as Ptivate Limited Company on May 22, 2012 and thereafter converted
into Public Limited Company on May 12, 2017 and the name of the Company was changed to “Taraashna Services
Limited”.

The Company is engaged in the business of “Business Cottespondent” activity with various Banks and NBFCs. As
per Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’), scope of activity of Business Correspondent services includes Identification of
Bortowers, collection and preliminary processing of loan applications including verification of primary information,
processing and submission of applications to banks, promoting, nurturing and monitoring of Self Help Groups/Joint
Liability Groups, post-sanction monitoting, follow-up fot tecovery, disbursal of small value credit and recovery of
ptincipal/collection of intetest. The company is presently operating in states of Punjab, Rajasthan, Gujarat, Madhya
Pradesh, Maharashtra, Bihar, Uttar Pradesh & Chhattisgarh.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These standalone financial statements (“the Financial Statements™) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Cotporate Affairs (MCA’) under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies for the periods
presented in this financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 ate the first financial statements, which has been prepared
in accordance with Ind AS and other applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

The financial statements up to and for the year ended March 31, 2018 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standard notified under Section 133 of the Act, tead together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP) and other applicable guidelines issued by the RBI, which have been adjusted
for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS.

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS, the Company has applied,
Fitst-time Adoption Standard (Ind AS 101) of Indian Accounting Standards. An explanation of how the transition to
Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
is provided in Note 42.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 1 May 2019.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting ptinciples
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities and shate based payments which ate measured at fair valves as explained
in relevant accounting policies.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases

summarised below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the
Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

X
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Taraashna Setvices Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2019

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price (including
any duties and other applicable tax), botrowing cost if capitalization critetia are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a sepatate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. The catrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other tepaits and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the reporting period in which they ate incutred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives and residual valu)
Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written-down method over the useful life
of the assets as prescribed under Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset class Useful life
Plant and machinery 5-15 years
Office equipment 5 yeats
Computer equipment 3 yeats
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use oz till the date the asset
is sold or disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
The Company fully depreciates the assets having individual value of Rs. 5,000 ot less in the year of acquisition.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use ot disposal. Any gain or loss atising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comptising direct cost, related incidental expenses and advances paid to
acquire property, plant and equipment. Assets which are not teady to intended use are also shown under capital work-
in-progress.

Transition to Ind AS
The Company has elected (0 measure all its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP cartying amount a8
its deemed cost on the date of transition of Ind AS ie., April 1, 2017.

Intangible assets
Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties

and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

N
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Taraashna Setvices Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2019

Subsequent measurement (amortisation)

Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 3 years from the date when the assets ate available for use. The
estimated useful life (amortisation petiod) of the intangible assets is artived basis the expected pattetn of consumption
of economic benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation petiod is revised to reflect
the changed pattern, if any.

Lransition to Ind AS
The Company has elected to measure all its intangible assets at the previous GAAP catrying amount as its deemed
cost on the date of transition of Ind AS i.e. Apsil 1, 2017,

Revenue recognition

Commission income
Income from business correspondent services is recognised as and when the setvices are rendered as per agreed terms
and conditions of the contract.

Interest income
Interest income on fixed deposits with bank is recognized on a time proportion accrual basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date.

Miscollaneous income
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/ collection.

Botrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction of a qualifying asset, till the time
such qualifying assets become ready for its intended use sale, ate capitalised. Borrowing cots consists of interest and
other cost that the Company incurred in connection with the bortowing of funds. A qualifying asset is one that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other botrowing costs are chatged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate method.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss comptises the sum of deferred tax and cuttent tax except to
the extent it recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

Current tax comprises the tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Cutrent tax is computed in accordance with televant tax
regulations. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Curtrent income tax telating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in

equity).

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if thete is a legally enforceable tight to set off the recognised amounts,
and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis ot simultaneously.

Miuitmum alternate tax (‘MAT") credit entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified petiod. In the year in which MAT credit
becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit
and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the catrying amount
of MAT credit entitlement is wtitten down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be

paid during the specified period.



Taraashna Setvices Limited
Summatry of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 Match 2019

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between cartying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and cortesponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised
on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that the future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of
future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of
any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable tight to set off the recognised amounts,
and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. Deferred tax relating to
items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit ot loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaties, short term compensated absences (such as a paid annual leave) where
the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees ate estimated and measured
on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit plans ate classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as
under:

Defined conttibution plans

‘The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance
scheme. The contribution made by the Company in respect of these plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan coveting eligible employees. Where
in the employce will receive on retirement is defined by refetence to employee's length of service and last drawn salary.
Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to
the employee’s length of setvice and final salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company,
even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. The liability recognised in the statement
of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of
independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in
other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-
term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to availed after
one year from the Balance Sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the teporting date. Actuarial gains and losses atising from past
experience and changes in actuarial assumptions ate charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such

gains or losses are determined.
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Taraashna Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information for the year ended
31 March 2019

Share based payments

Shate based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Satin Creditcare Network Limited (‘Holding
Company’) Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). The employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value
of the employee stock options and is recognised over vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The
vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of the
employee stock options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Holding Company’s equity shates.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of
an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impaitment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. If at the reporting date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

Impairment of financial assets

In respect of financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measutes the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the tisk of a default occurring over the expected life
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the isk of a default occurring on the financial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurting on the financial asset as at the date of initial
tecognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that
is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents and cash flow statements

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which ate subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, wheteby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information.
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Taraashna Setvices Limited
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2019

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions ate recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the tepotting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the
time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed fot:

e Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company
or

e Present obligations arising from past events whete it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised not disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related
asset is disclosed.

Opetating leases

Leases in which the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the
lessee are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

m) Financial instruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a patty to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measnrement

i. Financial assets carried at amottised cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a busincss model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Aftet initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
intetest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral patt of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



Taraashna Setvices Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2019

ii. Investments in mutual funds — Investments in mutual funds ate measured at fair value through profit and

loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards ate transferred. Further, if the Company has not
retained control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created ot retained in the transfer.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measursment
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-detivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial kabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective catrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shates outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the petiod is adjusted for events including a bonus
issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (including interest and other finance
cost associated with potential equity shates) for the petiod, atttibutable to equity shareholders (after deducting
attributable taxes) and the weighted average number of shates outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment reporting

‘The Company identifies segment basis the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments
are the segments for which scparate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts
are regularly by the executive management (‘chief operating decision maker’) in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are line with the accounting
policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship with the operating activities of the segment.

N
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2019

Share issue expenses

All the expenses pertaining to issue of equity share capital are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account to the
extent any balance is available for utilisation in securities premium account.

Guarantee contracts

Fitst loss default guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse
the bank and financial institution for a loss, it incurs because a specified customer fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a loan contracts or due to negligence or deficiency of setvice or non-obsetvance, by
the Company, of stipulations and conditions contained in the agreement with respective business partners. Such
guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions, for whom the Company acts as ‘Business Correspondent’.

On each reporting date, liabilities against these guarantee contracts are measured and recognised in books as per the
terms of agreements with respective business pattners.

Further, the maximum liability against these guatantee contracts ate restricted to the cash outflow agreed in the
agreements with respective business partners.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requites management to make judgemeants, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosutes.

Significant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impaitment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

Classification of leases — The Company enters into leasing arrangements for taking premises on lease. The
classification of the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of sevetal
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
purchase and estimated certainty of exetcise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life,
proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature
of the leased asset.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date, basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Signficant estimates
Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of

depreciable/amortisable assets at each teporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to techaical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information for the year ended
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Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Standards issued but not yet effective as on date

Ministry of Corpozrate Affairs (MCA?) has clarified that Ind AS 116 is effective for annual petiods beginning on or
after April 1, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases
under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard
includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of 'low-value' assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the undetlying asset during the lease term
(ie., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The Company is evaluating the requirements of the
amendment and the effect on the financial statements is being evaluated.

Amendment to Ind AS 12

The amendment to Ind AS 12 requires the entities to consider recognition and measurement requirements when there
is uncertainty over income tax treatments. In such a circumstance, an entity shall recognise and measure its current
or deferred tax asset or liability accordingly. The Company is evaluating the requitements of the amendments and
their impact on the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 19

The amendmeant to Ind AS 19 requires the entities to determine current service cost using actuarial assumptions and
net interest using discount rate determined at the start of the annual reporting period. However, if an entity re-
measures the net defined benefit liability (asset) as per the requirement of the standard, it shall determine cutrent
service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan amendment, curtailment
ot settlement using the actuarial assumptions used to re-measute the net defined benefit liability (asset). The Company
is evaluating the requirements of the amendments and their impact on the financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes forming part of Fi 1al § for the year ending March 31, 2019
(Allamounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

4 Property, plant and equipment

@

Gross Block Plant & Office Fumniture & Vehicle Total

Equip Equip Fi
Balance a5 at 01 April 2017 75.62 37.52 106.99 16.61 236,75
Additions 124.67 1.29 2.64 36.06 164.66
Adjustments during the year (0.33) (0.29) (26,54) (16.61) (43.77)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 199.96 38.53 83.09 36.06 357.64
Additions 1879 8.90 756 . 35.26
Disposals (1.70) (1.22) (0.46) - (3.38)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 217.05 46.21 90.20 36.06 389.52
A 1 A A Iasl
Balance as at 01 April 2017 54.09 19.44 38.47 9.08 121.07
Depreciation charge for the year 2117 10.28 16.55 6.58 60.57
Adjustment on account of disposals (0.32) (0.25) (12.67) (11.04) (24.28)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 80.93 29.47 42.34 4.61 157.36
Depreciation charge for the period 80.39 517 11.59 9.82 106.97
Adjustment on account of disposals 0.71) (0.98) (0.06) - (1.75)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 160.61 33.66 53.87 14.43 262.57
Net block
Balance as at 01 April 2017 21.54 18.08 68.53 753 115.68
Balance a9 at 31 March 2018 119,03 9.06 40.75 3145 200.28
Balance as at 31 March 2019 56.44 12.55 3633 21.63 126.95
* Property, plant and equipment have been mortgaged/pledged as security for borrowings, refer note 45.
D d cont of property, plant and equip t
Pasticulurs ."P!?m & ) Eq|0'ﬁce Ft:r'nlture & Vehicle Total

L e L o b

Gross block as at Apnl 1, 2017 75.62 37.52 106.99 16.61 23675
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 54.09 19.44 38.47 9.08 121,07
Net block as at April 1, 2017 21.54 18.08 68,53 7.53 115.68
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Other intangible assets

Gross Block Software Total

Balance as at 1 April 2017 32.98 32,98

Additions - -

Adjustments during the year - -

Balance an at 31 March 2018 32.98 32.98

Additions - -

Disposals (12.52) (12.52)

Balance av nt 31 March 2019 20.46 20.46

Accumulated depreciadon

Balance as at 1 April 2017 20.78 20.78

Depreciation chasge 7.70 170

Disposals - “

Balance as at 31 March 2018 28.48 28.48

Depreciation charge 284 284

Disposals (12.21) (1221)

Balance a¢ at 31 March 2019 19.11 19.11

Net block

Balance as at 1 April 2017 12.20 12.20

Balance as at 31 March 2018 4.49 4.49

Balance ag at 31 March 2019 1.35 135

Deemed cost of other i gible anuern

Particulars Software Total
Gross block as at April 1, 2017 32,98 32,98
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2017 20.78 20.78
Net block av at April 1, 2017 12.20 12,20
Note:

The Company has elected Ind AS 101 exemption and continue with the cartying value for all of its intangible assets as its

deemed cost as at the date of transition.
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6

As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Loans (non current financial asscts)
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 10,74 8.34 14.98
10,74 8.34 14,98
Other financial assets (non current)
Term deposits having remaining maturity of more than 1 year 1,868.96 1,628.06 821.06
Note: There are no repatriation restrictions with respect to cash and bank balances as at the end 1 1,868.96 1,628.06 821.06
Current tax assets (net)
Advance income-tax and tax deducted at aource recievable $19.43 781.17 524.76
819.43 781.17 524.76
Deferred tax assets (net)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
(a) Employee benefits 42.44 3418 27.82
(b) Depreciation and amortisation 26.62 11,35 9.63
(c) Carried forward losses 278.27 .
(d) Unabsorbed depreciation . 24.52 B
() Othess 291 B 0.21
(6 Allowance for first loss default guarantee 6.85 23.94 19.79
® Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 145.24 -
(h) Mcasurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 0.69 - -
22475 37226 57.44
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Habilities:
@ Measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 0.76 1.12
- 0.76 112
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) 224.75 371.50 56.33
Notee:
(D M ent in deferred tax asoets/(liabilities) for year ended March 31, 2019:
Particulars Asat Recognised In other Recognised statement As at
April 1, 2018 comprehensive income of profit and loss March 31, 2019
Tax effect of items ituting deferred tax
(@ Employee benefits 34.18 (2.54) 10.80 42.44
(b) Depreciation and amortisation 11.35 . 15.27 26.62
(c) Carried Forward Losses 278.27 - (278.27)
(d) Unabsorbed Depreciation 24.52 = (24.52)
(¢) Provision for first loss default guarantee 23.94 (17.08) 6.85
(® Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans .
(h) Provision on gratuity . .
() Minimum aiternate tax credit entitlement 14524 145.24
(® Measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost - - 0.69 0.69
(h) Others - . 291 29
372.26 (2.54) (144.98) 224.75
Tax effect of items conetituting deferred tax liabilities:
(® Employee benefits - -
() Measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities ot amortised cost 0.76 (0.76)
0.76 - (0.76) -
Net deferred tax asset 371.50 {_2.54} (144._2‘9 224.75
(i) Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) for year ended March 31, 2018:
Particulars As at Recognised in other  Recognised statement of Asat
April 1, 2017 comprehensive income profit and loes March 31, 2018
Tux effect of ivems consriruting deferred tax assets:
(@ Employee benefits 27.82 3.99) 10.34 34.18
(b) Depreciation and amortisation 9.63 - 172 1135
(©) Carried Forward I.osses 27827 278.27
(d) Unabsorbed Depreciation % 24.52 24.52
(¢) Expenditure on account of Authorised Share Capital 0.21 0.21) -
(f) Provision on incentive - - .
(® First Loss default guacantee expenses 19.79 = 415 23.94
(h) Re-measurement gains/ (losscs) on defined benefit plans - : - -
57.44 (399 318.80 372.26
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities:
() Provision on gratuity - - -
() Measurement of financial assets and financial liabilitics at amortised cost 1,12 (0.36) 0.76
1.12 - (0.36) 0.76
Net deferred tax asset 56.33 (3.99) 31946 371.50




Taraashna Servicen Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

10 Other non-cutrent assets

1n

14

i6

Employees group gratuity trust - 23.13 14.80
LIC Group Gratuity Scheme 1.22
Prepaid expenses 3.60 4.36 3.08
3.60 28.71 17.88
Trade receivables
Trade receivables (unsecured, considered good) 586.07 1,158.46 589.85
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - : &
586.07 1,158.46 589,85
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current account 847.94 1,317.13 999.15
Cash in hand 30.51 178.89 192.77
Sub total (A) 87845 1,496.02 1,191.92
‘Term deposits
Term deposits for original maturity of 3 months or less 100.03 - >
Sub total (B) 100.03 - -
Total (A+ B) 978.48 1,496.02 1,191.92
Note: There are no repatriation restrictions with respect to cash and bank balances as at the end of the reporting year and comparative years.
Other bank balances
Deposits with original maturity more than three months but less than twelve monthe* - -
Term deposits for remaining maturity of 3 months or less 245.12 339.58 103.93
Term deposits for remaining maturity of more than 3 months and upto 1 year 1,411.93 382.58 950.78
1,657.05 722.16 1,054.71

Note: The total term deposits of the Company with Banks amounts to Rs. 3,626.04 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 2,350.22 lakhs) out of which Rs. 1,868.96 lakhs (Previous Year Ra.
1,628.06 lakhs) is shown as other financial assets (non current) and Rs. 1,657.05 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 722.16 lakhs) as other bank balances. All these term deposits ace lien

snarked for the Banks / NBFC against first loss/second loss default guacantees.

Loans (current financlal asscts)
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) 16.31 18.41 9.58
16.31 18.41 9.58
*The cartying values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Other financial assets (current)
Staff advance 39.11 10.92 24.88
39.11 10.92 24.88
‘The carrying values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Other current asscts
Advances recoverable in kind 4.7 38.54 26.14
Prepaid expenses 80.48 30.88 21.67
Balance with government authorities 39.64 0.11 6.96
124.89 69.53 54.77
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Taraashna Services Limited (Formesly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

18 Other equity As at As at As at
March 31, 2019  March 31,2018 April 1, 2017
Securities premium 3,013.45 1,384.56 531.40
(refer note 1 below)
Retained earnings 562.00 (286.08) 388.27
Total Other Equity 3,575.45 1,098.48 919.67

Note 1 Securities premium
Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares.
The securities premium is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.



Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019
{All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
19 Borrowinge (non current financial liabilitics)
Term loans from financial institutions (unsecured) . 446.62 319.63
Car loan from ICICI Bank (secured) 18.12 - -
18.12 446.62 319.63
* The Company has availed long term loan facilities from financial institutions as per details below;
S No. Terms of Repayments March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
(a) 60 Monthly instalments of ¥ 58,395/- each 23.42 28.37 4.10
Current Portion 5.30 4.91 410
Non Current Portion 18.12 23.46 -
(b) In12to 24 quarterly instalments 282.35 961.45 629.90
Current Portion 282.35 538.29 310.27
Non Current Portion - 423.16 319.63
305.77 989.82 634.00
Car Loan from ICICI Bank is secured by way of hypothecation of assets purchased through loan
20 Provisions (Non Current)
Provision for compensated abscaccs 124.05 97.62 70.69
Provision for gratuity 3.66 - 7.62
127.11 97.62 78.31
21 Borrowings (current financial liabilities)
Q? . .
Cash credit facility from Bank (secured) . - 236.45
Credit facility from Bank (Unsecured) 0.17 8.87 0.13
0.17 8,87 236.58
22 Trade payables (Current Financial Liabilities)
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
Dues of other creditors 124.70 1,654.67 1,203.80
124.70 1,654.67 1,203.80
23 Other financial liabilities (Current)
‘Teem loans from financial institutions (unsecured) 282.35 543.19 314.37
Car loan from ICICI Bank (secured) 5.30 - -
287.65 543.19 314.37
Intceest accrued but not due on lung term burrowings 294 10.62 543
First loss default guarantee liability 523.15 1,034.26 363.11
Expenses payable 73.15 182.87 65.55
886,89 1,770.94 748.46
24 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 85.99 163.83 53,23
85,99 163.83 53.23
25 Provisions (Current)
Provision for compensated ahsences 1112 12,98 20.65
Provision for First loss default guarantcc 23.54 - -
34.66 12,98 20.65




Taraashna Setvices Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending Match 31, 2019
(Allamounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
26 Revenue from opetations
(2) Income from business correspondents operations 6,240.66 5,175.14
(b) Other operating income
Interest income from fixed deposits 216.70 160.32
Subtotal 216.70 160.32
Total 6,457.36 5,335.46
27 Other income
(a) Other income
Recovery against portfolio 289.33 -
Intetest income on secutity deposit 1.46 2.39
Interest Income on refund of security deposits - 0.55
Miscellaneous income 69.34 47.39
Sub-total (A) 360.13 50.33

(b) Other non-operating income
Gain on sale of mutual funds 10.95

Gain in fair value of mutual fund

Sub-total (B) 10.95

Total (A+ B) 371.08 50.33

28 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 3,189.50 2,749.91
Contribution to provident and other funds 247.40 257.09
Staff welfare expenses 29.70 28.17
Share based payments 66.17 6.25
3,532.77 3,041.42

For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, tefer Note 38 Employee benefit obligations.

29 Finance costs

Interest on borrowings 155.25 117.34
Other finance charges 89.12 116.90
244.37 234.24

30 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on tangible assets 106.97 60.57
Amortisation on intangible assets 2.84 7.70
109.81 68.27




Taraashna Services Limited (Formetly known as Taraashna Setvices Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended  For the year ended
Match 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
31 Other expenses
Rent 239.97 215.25
Travelling and conveyance 182.80 165.71
Repair and maintainance 17.55 2.92
Printing and stationery 79.10 81.02
Communication cost 137.75 71.16
Insurance charges 85.33 59.70
Guarantee fees - 47.94
Website and email maintainance charges 65.02 33.45
Rates and taxes 62.84 32.09
Electricity charges 38.30 26.81
Loss on sale of assets 0.79 12.92
Freight and cartage 4.37 4.88
Auditot's temuneration* 6.50 4.00
Business promotion 4.57 3.88
Commission paid 1.00 3.03
Legal and professional charges 15.99 3.06
Allowance for first loss default guarantee 23.54 14.25
Expense on first loss default guarantee invoked 549.94 2,084.57
Ditect operational expenses - 1.07
Director sitting fees 1.20 1.20
Advertisement expenses 0.36
Security services - 1.25
Miscellaneous expenses 3.68 2.65
Office expenses 130.95 147.51
Postage and coutier 31.88 26.79
Interest and penalties 1.65 1.49
1,684.72 3,048.96
Note*: Auditors remuneration includes payments as follows:
(a) Statutoty audit 5.00 3.00
(b) Tax audit 1.50 1.00
6.50 4.00




Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending Match 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
32 Eamings/(Loss) per equity share (EPS)
Net profit/(Loss) for the year 841.88 (684.06)
Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS 14,531,105 11,108,013
Par value per share 10 10
Earnings per shate - Basic and diluted 5.79 (6.16)
33 Tax expense
Cutrent tax (including taxes eatliet years) 270.67 (3.88)
Deferred tax expense/(credit) 144.22 (319.16)
414.89 (323.05)

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of

and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 1,256.77 (1,007.10)
At country’s statutory income tax rate of 29.12% 365.97 (311.20)
(March 31, 2018: 30.90%)
Adjustments in respect of taxes eatlier years
() Difference due to loss on dispose of assets (0.23) (3.99)
as per books and Income Tax Act, 1961
(i) Due to change in rate 42.44 (7.86)
(iii) Others 6.71 -
414.89 (323.05)
34 Leases

The Company has taken office premises, I'T equipments etc under operating lease arrangements that are renewable
as mutually agreed terms between lessee ot lessor. These lease arrangements can be extended up to a maximum

of 10 years aftet expiry of initial lease term.

Total lease expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Operating lease rent 238.31

212.64

238.31

212.64

The contractual future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are NIL.
Not later than one year -
Later than one year and not later than five years -
More than 5 yeats .

N\



Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

35 Contingent Hability, capital or other commitment
The Company has NIL (previous year NIL) Contingent liability, capital or other commitment as on March 31, 2019.

36 Asscts Under Management

‘The Company is in the activity of business correspondent for various banks and NBFCs. Company provides first and second loss default guarantees in the form of

fixed deposits/guarantess for Assets Under Management as per business cortespundent agreenents signed with various banks and NBRCs,

The institutionwise Assets Under Management in books of company as on March 31, 2019 are as follows:

S.No. Name of Channe] Partner March 31,2019  March 31,2018 April 1, 2017
() Yes Bank Ltd. 22,926.17 16,366.47 10,761.19
(i) RBL Bank Ltd. 8,258.08 23,030.71 23,029.03
(iif) Reliance Capital Ltd. 7,755.49 14,749.71 7,008.92
(iv) DCB Bank Litd. 20,936.64 11,010.38 3,696.51
(v) Indusind Bank Ltd. 458.58 1,659.03 41542
(vi) Northern Arc Capital Ltd, 24.85 39.23 65.36
(vii) State Baak of India 61.15 136.86 -
Total 60,420.95 66,992.39 44,976.43




‘Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in Iakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

37 Related Party transactions
In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard — 24 the names of the related parties where control/ability to exercise significant
influence exists, along with the aggregate amount of transactions and year end balances with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

a. Detaile of related partica:

Description of relationship Names of related parties
Holding company Satin Creditcare Network Limited
Entities over which significant influence Niryas Food Products Private Limited

is exercised by the company /key management
personnel (either individually or with others)

Key management personnel (KMP) Anupreet HP Singh  ; Director
Sanjeev Vij ; Chief Executive Officer & Whole Time Director
Prashant Sharma ; Company Secretary

Abhay Thakkar ; Chief Finandial Officer

b. Transactione with Related Parties are as under:

Enterprise under Common Control Key Management Personnel
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31,2019  March 31, 2018
(i) Transactions during the year
Satin Creditcare Network Limited
Issuc of Equity Shares 2,000.00 1,200.00 -
Rent 0.60 0.23 -
Share based payments 66.17 6.25 -
Management Services 3216 -
Niryas Food Products Private Limited
Received amount of loan instalment 125.47 47.68 -
deducted from creditors of milk products =
Anupreet HP Singh
Directors' Remuneration
Sanjeev Vij
Remuneration paid 89.23 72.25
Abhay Thakkar
Remuneration paid 12,58 6.56
Prashant Sharma
Remunertion paid 8.38 7.83
(ii) Balances at Year End
Trade Receivables 3.10 0.02
Nityas Food Products Private Limited 3.10 0.02
Trade Payables 66.17 6.25
Satin Creditcare Network Limited 66.17 6.25

With respect to the key management personnel, disclosure has been given for those relatives with whom
Key management personnel remuneration includes the following expenses:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Short-term employee benefits 105.73 83.64
Post-employment benefits 4.46 299
Termination benefits 3 3

Total remuneration 110.19 86.63

(This space has beer left blank intentionally)



Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

38

0]

(i)

()

(0]

Employee benefits
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 19 on Employee Benefit as under :

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

‘The Company has made ¥ 247.40 lakhs (March 31, 2018 T 257.09 lakhs) contribution in respect of provident fund and other funds.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. The scheme is funded by the Company and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (“LIC”). The liability of Gratuity is

recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Risks associated with plan provisions

By inccosses valuations will also increase the liability.

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future

fnsatongat cisk assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate

|subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability:

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
Mortality & disability Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
Withdeawals Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at

Amount recognised in the balance sheet is 28 under:

As at Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Present value of obligation 121.53 84.21 58.36
Fair value of plan assets 117.87 85.43 50.74
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision (3.66) 1.22 (7.62)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as und
Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
|Service cost 43.56 LIRS
Net interest cost /(income) (0.10) 0.56
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation = -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 43.47 31.67
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised during the year (8.72) (13.70)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income 34.74 23.97
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recogniscd in the balance sheet is as und
Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 84.21 58.36
Service cost 6.57 4.26
Interest cost 43.56 KYSY
Benefits paid (4.09) (1.83)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption 1.53 15.98
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from experience adiustment (10.25) (29.68)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the vear 121.53 84.21
Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan )
Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Funds managed by insurer 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%




Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

38 Employee benefits [continued]

(v) Movement in the plan agsets recognived in the balance sheet iy as und

Agat Asat
Particulare March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 85.43 50.74
Actual return on plan assests 3.52 4.85
Employer's contribution 33.01 3167
Benefits paid (4.09) (1.83)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on plan assets
Fair value of plan agsets at the end of the year 117.87 85.43
(vi) Actuarial assumptions
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Discounting rate 7.66% 7.80%
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement age (years) 60.00 60.00
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years 8.00% 8.00%
From 31 to 44 years 8.00% 8.00%
Above 44 years 8.00% 8.00%
| Weighted average duration 11.06 10.53

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2006 — 08)

Gratuity is puyable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment of superannuation age. To provide for these

eventualities, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate table.

(vil) Sensitivity unalysis for gratuity liability

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 121.53 84.21
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (5.73) (3.02
= Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 6.22 3.18
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 121.53 84.21
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 6.29 323
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (5.84) (3.09)

Sensitivities due to mortlity and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these is not calculated,

Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable.

Asat Asat
(viti)| Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation March 31. 2019 | March 31, 2018
Years Amount Amount
0to 1 year 1112 1.52
1 to 2 year 3.26 277
2 to 3 year 5.38 4.09
3 to 4 year 6.18 4.82
410 5 year 6.82 5.19
5 to 6 year 6.83 4.81
6 year onwards 81.95 61.02




Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known ae Taraashna Services Private Limited)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
38 Employee benefits [continued]
B Compensated absences (non-funded)

(i) Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars As at As at Asat
March 31,2019 | March 31,2018 | April1, 2017
Present value of obligation 13517 110.60 91.33
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 135.17 110.60 91.33
(ii) A recognived in the statement of profit and loss is as und
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Total service cost 58.40 62.62
Net interest cost on defined benefit obligation 8.63 6.67
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recopnised during the year (42.46) (50.01)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 24.57 19.27
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3
A

B

Financinl instruments
Financial sssets and liabilities
‘The canying and fair values of fnancial i by category ace as follows:
Notes to As at As at As at
E— schedule | Murch 31,2019 | March 31,2018 | Apeid 1, 2017
Fi ial assets d at ived cost
Cash and Cash equivalents 1 978.48 1,496.02 1,191.92
Bank balances other than above 2 3,526.01 250,22 1,875.77
Receivables 3 586.07 1,158.46 589.85
Security deposits 4 27.05 26.75 24.56
Other financial assets 4 39.11 1092 24.88
Total 5,156.72 5,042,536 3,706.98
Pinancial Habilities d at ised cost
Paynbles 10 124.70 1,654.67 1,203.80
Borrowings (other than debt securities but including interest accrued) 1 305.94 998.69 870.58
Other financial linbilitics 12 599.24 1,221.75 434.09
Total 1,029.89 3,88L.11 2,508,46
Fair values hierarchy
The fair value of financial i as referred to in note (A) above has been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the vab technique. The hi hy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements] and lowest priority to unobservable inputs {Level 3 measurements].
The categories used are as follows:
Level 1t Quoted prices (| {) for identical i in an active market;
Level 2: Direetly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Company does not have any assets measured at fair value.
Fair value of i dat rtised cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 978.48 978.48 1,496.02 1,496.02 1,191.92 1,191.92
Bank balances other than above 3,526.01 3,526.01 2,350.22 2,350.22 1,875.77 1,875.77
Receivables 586.07 586.07 1,158.46 1,158.46 589.85 589.85
Security deposits 27.05 27.05 26.75 2675 24.56 24.56
Oither financial assets 39.11 3941 10,92 10,92 24.88 24.88
Total 5,156.72 5,156,712 5,042.36 5,042.36 3,706.98 3,706.98
Financial lisbilities
Payables 124.70 12470 1,654.67 1,654.67 1,203.80 1,203.80
| Borrowings (other than debt but includi 305.94 24272 998.69 924.35 870.58 897.41
Other financial Tnbilites 599.24 599.24 1,227.75 1,221.75 434.00 434.09
Total 1,029.89 966,67 3,88L11 3,806,771 2,508.46 2,535.30

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables,

of these i The

pp their resp carrying largely due to the shore-term
at which the i nt could he exchang 1 in 1 current transaction between willing parties, other than
were used to cstimate the fair values:

sl

such as §

1 e

of the cu

® Long-teem fixed-mte receivables ase evaluated by the Company based on p rates, ind

(i) The fuir vahies of the C y's fixed i I

debt

(iil) The fair values of the Company fixed i
using discount rate that eeflects the issuer's

Financlal risk management

Risk Management
‘I'he Company's activities capose il to macket risk, liquidity risk and
Company tlk neiyenent lramewark, This aote cxplainy the sources

credit risk. The Company's
of risk which the entity is exposed to and

[=2

'3 ies, bomowings and subgrdinalted liabilities are determined by
bormowing mte as at the end of the reporting pedod, The own non-performance risk 2 at

insignificant.
applying discounted cash flows (DCI7) method,
March 31, 2018 was assessed to be insignificant.

other financial sssets, trade payables and other financial liabiitics
fuir value of the financial assets and liabilitics w inchided at the
in a forced or liquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions

and other market risk factors.

P ing Joans and receivables are determined by applying discounted cash flows (DCF?) methad, ssing discount rte that reflects the
issuer's borsowing mte as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at March 31, 2018 was assessed to be i

board of direetors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
how the catity masiages the dak and the related impact in the financal

statements.

| Riake Exp ariving from M Mansgement

|C|¢dit risk Cash and cash eguivalents, loans, financial asscts Ageing analysis Pank ats, divernification of asset base, credit limits and

Laquidity risk Borrowings, debt securities, suburdinated liabilities, Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines and borrowing facilites
and uther fitancial liabilitics )

Market nak - intesest ate | B ings, debt and subordinated Sensitvity analysis Negotiation of teems that reflect the market factors
liabilitics at vaciable rates

The C y's risk g is carried out by a central y deg t (of the Company) under policies appruved by the board of directors, "Uhe board of directors provides

written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange

risk, interest mte risk, credit nak and i

of excess liquidi

4




Targashna Services Limited (Formesly knowm as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming pare of Financial St for ihe year ending March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

A)

%)

Credit rigk

Credit risk in the risk that a counterparty fails 1o discharge its obligation to the Company “The Company's exp to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivilents, loan
assests, and other financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company conti Iy i fefaults of customens and other counterparties and incor this infi 1
into its credit risk controls.

Credit rlsk management

The Comproy and credit riak based on internal credit rating system. Intemal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with different

® Low credit risk on financial reporting date
(i) Moderate credit risk
(iif) High credit risk

"The Conpany provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Aseet Company Basis of categorisat Provision for expected credit loss

Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, othee bank bal i loyans and 12 month expected credit loss

Modemte credit risk Loans, trade receivables and other financial assets Life time exp 1 credit Ioss or 12 month expected credit
High credit risk Loans and other Anancial assets Tife time expected credit loss fully provided for

Based on business environment in which the Company uperates, a default on a financial asset i considered when the counter pacty fails to nake payments within the agreed Gme
period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss expesience and considering differences b current and historical e ic conditi

Assers are written off when there is no ceasonable expeetation of recovery, such a3 3 borrower declaring bankeuptey or & litigation decided against the Company, The Company

continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off und pts (0 enforce epay Recaveries made are recognised in satement of profit and loss.

Fi ial pesets that expose the entity to credit risk®

As at As at As at
Farontes March 31,2018 | March 31,2018 |  April1, 2017
() Low credit rivk on financial reporting date
Bank Balance in current accounts & in Fixed Deposits 947.97 1,317.13 999.15
Bank balances other than above 3,526.01 2,350.22 1,875.77
Security deposits 27.05 2675 24,56
Other financial assets 39.11 10.92 24.88
Receivables 586.07 1,158.46 589.85

@) Moderate credit risk

(iif) High credit risk

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without deduction for expected credit losses

Canh and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly mted banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks
across the country.

Lowan
Credit risk eelated to b 'y wre mitigated by considenng collateral’s/ bank g es/lettee of credit, from borrower's, The Company closely monitors the credit hineds of

the 1 s through 1 | 5y that aee eonfigured from systematic institutional and project appraisal process analysis 10 assess the credit risk and define credit limits of
1

barrowet, thereby, limiting the eredit risk to pre-ul::uh;d These p inchide  demiled appras hodology, identification of risks and suitable sructuring and credit
risk mitigation "The Company increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts receivable that become past due and default is considered to have occurred
when amounts receivable become one year past due.

Other financial assets d at ixed cost
Othes financial assets d at ized cost includes loans and advances to employees, ity deposits and others, Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed
by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.




B)

‘Taraashna Services Limited (F: Iy L
Notes f

Expected credit losses for inancial assets

1 financial i

for

Company provides for expected credit losses on financial assets by ing i

14

of any credit losses:

- For cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash and cash

equivalents, other bank bnlmceu and bank deposits is evaluated as very low.
-Fori - Consid

q

g the i
- For loans comprising security depoms paid - Credit risk is ¢ dlow b the C

of the

Horh

,lng”lel‘.

- For other financial assets - Credit risk is eval bucdon(' s k

PR

are in mutual funds, certificate of depsoits and Govemment securities, credit risk is considered low.
y i8 in pe

Ige of the ceedit wonhmcu of those parties and loss allowance is measured for 12 month expected

c:ed:t losses upon initial recognition and provide for lifetime expected credit losses upon significant increase in credit risk. The Company does not have any expected loss based
t recognised on such assets considering their low credit risk nature, though the reconciliation of expected credit loss for all sub categories of financial assets (other than

loans) are disclosed below:

Betimated gross Expected Expected credit | Carrying amount
As at carrylng probability of losses net of impairment
amount at default provision
March 31, 2019 default
Bank Balance in current accounts & in Fixed Deposits 941.97 0% 94197
Bank balances other than sbove 3,526.01 0% 3,526.01
Security deposits 27.05 0% 27.05
Other financial asseis 27.05 0% - 27,05
Estimated gross|  Expected Expected credit | Carrying amount
carrying probability of losses net of impairment
As at March 31, 2018 amount at default provision
default
Bank Balance in current accounts & in Fixed Deposits 131713 0% 1,317.13
Bank balances other than above 2350.22 0% 2350.22
Secunity deposits 26.75 0% - 26.75
Other financial assets 26.75 0% - 2675
Estimated gross Expected Expected credit | Carrying amount
carrying probability of losses net of impairment
As at April 1, 2017 amount at default provision
default
Bank Balance in current accounts & in Fixed Deposits 999.15 0% 999.15
Bank balances other than above 1,875.77 0% 1,875.77
|Security depsoits 24.56 0% 24.56
Other financial assety 24.56 0% - 24.56

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are scttled by delivering cash or anothee
financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far 25 possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its Liabilities when they are due.

of the Company's liquidi

Management monitors rolling f
liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

as'T hna Services Private Limited)
for the year ending March 31, 2019
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®

y position and cash and cash equivalents un the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the

Financing arrangements
The Company had access o the following und barrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
Asat Asat As at
Particulara March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
- Expiring within one year (Term loan facilities- Fixed rate) 1,000.00
- Rxpiring beyond one year (Term loan facilities - Fixed rate)
- Expiring within one year (cash credit, invoice discounting and other facilities- fixed/ floating rate)
Limit 145.00 145.00 255.00
Drnawn 038 0.45 236.57
Undravm
- Bxpiring beyond one year (cash credit and other facilities- - fixed/floating rate) -

The eash credit and invoice discounting facilities may be deawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank/ financial institution after giving notice.
Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the term loan facilities can be drawn till June 30, 19 in ¥ 1,000 lakhs and have an average maturity of 1 year. (March 31, 2018:

il , April 1, 2017 ; nil ).
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Maturities of financial liabilides

The tables below analyse the Company financial liabilities into rel

[ yings based on their contractual maturities.

Y L

The amounts disclosed in the table ase the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

As at March 31, 2019 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 yeats Total
Borrowings (other than debt securities but including interest accrued) 316.90 101 7.01 6.39 33731
Payables 124,70 3 124,70
Other financial liabilities 596.30 - - = 124.70
Total 441.61 7.01 7.01 6.39 462.02
As ot March 31, 2018 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years "Total
Borrowings (other than debt securities but including interest accrued) 67471 505.57 5645 13.40 1,250.13
Paysbles 1,654.67 . - - 1,654.67
Other financial liabilities 1217.13 . - - 1217.13
‘Total 3,546.52 505.57 56.45 13.40 4,121,94
As a¢ Aprl 1, 2017 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Borrowings (other than debt but including i accrued) 404.03 386.77 256.54 2041 1,061.75
Payables 1,203.80 - . 1,203.80
Other financial liabilities 428.67 - - - 428.67
Total 2,036.50 386.77 256.54 2041 2,700.22
Interest rate risk

Liabilitles

The Company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At March 31, 2019, the Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates

through bank borrowings at variable inteeest mtes. The Company's i

in fixed dep

All the borrowings carry fixed rate of interest, and accondingly, the Company do not have any exposure to interest mte risk.

Assets

The Company's fized deponits are carcied at amoctised cost and are fixed mte dep

They are th

£

its all pay fixed interest mtes.

carrying amount nor the futuee cash flows will fluctate because of a change in market interest rtes,

Capital management
The Company’s capital b bjectives are
- to ensure the Company’s ability to a8 & going concern

- to provide an adequate retum to sharcholders

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order 1o maintain an efficient overall fnancing structure while svoiding excessive leverage. This mkes into aceount the

subordinanon lovels of the Company’s vanous classes of debt. The C

ges the capital

and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in cconomic conditions

and the ruk chamcteristica of the underlying assets. In order to maintin or ;di\lst the eapital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shaccholdess, retuen

capital to sharcholders, issue new shares, or sell assers to reduce debt.

Particulare March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 305.93 998.68 870.59
Other financial liabilities - Interest Accrued 294 10.62 542
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (978.48) (1,496.02) (1,191.92)
Total borrowings /Net debt*® (669.61) (486.72) (315.91)
Equity Share Capital 1,604.00 1,244.03 908.27
Other Equity 3,57545 1,098.48 919.67
Total equity/Capital and net debt 5,179.46 2,342.51 1,827.95
Net debt to equity ratio /Gearing ratio (0.13) (0.21) 0.17)
* Net debt includes boreowings (other than debt ities) + i 1 - cash and cash equivalents.
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Firet time adoption of Ind AS
These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS,

The accounting policies set out in note 3 have been applied in preparing the finaricial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, the
compantive information 1in these financial for the year ended 31 March 2018 and in the preparation of an openi ig Ind
AS balance sheet at 01 Apsil 2017 (the Company's date of transition). An explanation of how the reansition from previous GAAP to Ind AS
has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash fows is set out in the following tables and notes.

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a figat-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised
in the financial statements as at the date of teansition to Ind AS, measured a3 per the Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at
the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liahilitics. This exemption can also be used for intangible
assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and investment propecty at their Peevious GAAP carrying value,

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same
date in wccordance with Previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective
evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2017 ace consistent with the estimates 29 at the same date made in conformity with Previous GAAP. The
Company made estimates for impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model in accordance with Ind AS at the date of
transition as these were not required under Previous GAAP:

Clagsification and m nt of fi ial and liabilities
The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on
facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition.

Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by assessing its contractual cash flow characteristics only on the basis of
facts and circumstances exinting at the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess the use of effective interest method, fair value of
financial agset at the date of transition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset, The measurement exemption applies for financial
liabulities as well.

Reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires aa entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables
represent the reconciliations from Previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Reconcillation of total | equity us at March 31, 2018 and April 1, 2017

Notes March 31,2018 April 1, 2017

Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per Previous GAAP 2,398.94 1,873.38
Adjustments:

Measutement of financial assets and liabilities initially at fair valuc and Note -1 2.60 3.85
subsequently at amortised cost

Measurement of first loss default guarantec Note -2 (82.21) (67.95)
Deferred Tax effect of adjustmenta Note - 4 23.18 18.67
Total adjustments (56.43) (45.44)

Total equity as per Ind AS 2,342.51 1,827.95




2 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018 .
Notes March 31, 2018
Profit after tax as per Previous GAAP (663.36)
Adjustments:
Measurement of financial assets and liabilities initially at fair value and Note -1 (1.25)
subsequently at amortised cost
Measurement of fiest loss default guarantee Note ~2 (14.25)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations Note -3 (13.70)
Deferred Tax effect of adjustments Note — 4 8.50
Total adjustments (20.70)
Profit as per Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2018 (684.06)
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined bencfit obligations 13.70
Income tax effects of OCI adjustment (.99
Total prehensive i for the year ended 31 March 2018 (674.35)
3 Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018
Description Per Previous Ind AS PerInd AS
GAAP* adjustments
Net cash flow from operating activities (713.64) 50.09 (763.73)
Net cash flow from investing activities (163.66) (5.59) (158.07)
Net cash flow from financing activities 1,181.40 (23.46) 1,204.86
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 304.10 21.04 283.06
Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1, 2017 1,191,92 - 1,191.92
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2018 1,496.02 21.04 1,474,98

The adjustments to cash flow statement is on account of measurement of deposits with banks and borrowings at amortised cost.

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.



Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ending March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Reconciliation of the assets and liabilities presented in the balance sheet prepared as per Previous GAAP and as per Ind AS as at

April 1, 2017 in an follows:
Notes to firet time As Per Ind AS
Description adoption Previous GAAP* adjustments kit
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 115.68 (0.00) 115.68
Other intangible assets 12.20 0.00 12.20
Financial assets - B
Loans Note 1 19.15 (4.18) 14.98
Other financial assets 805.42 15.64 821,06
Current tax assets (net) 524.76 - 524.76
Deferred tax assets (net) Note 4 37.67 18.67 56.33
Other non-current assets Note 1 35.84 (17.97) 17.88
‘Total non-current agsets 1,550.71 12.17 1,562.88
Current assets
Financial assets
Loans Note 1 11.37 (1.78) 9.58
Trade receivables 598.79 (8.94) 589.85
Cash and cash equivalents Note 1 1,191.92 0.00 1,191.92
Other bank balances Note 1 990.94 63.76 1,054.71
Other financial assets 104,28 (79.40) 24.88
Other current assets Note 1 43.62 11,15 54.77
Total current assets 2,940.92 (15.21) 2,925.71
TOTAL ASSETS 4,491.64 (3.05) 4,488.59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 908.27 - 908.27
Other equity Note 1,2,3,4 965.11 (45.44) 919.67
Total equity 1,873.38 (45.44) 1,827.98
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Note 1 324.15 (4.52) 319.63
Other financial liabilities E -
Provisions 96.05 (17.74) 78.31
Other non current liabilities - - -
‘Total non-current liabilities 420.20 (22.26) 397.94
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 236.58 - 236.58
Trade payables 1,203.80 - 1,203.80
Other financial liabilities Note 1 680.52 67.95 748.47
Other current liabilities 53.20 - 53.20
Provisions Note 2 23.95 (3.30) 20.65
Total current Habilities 2,198.05 64.65 2,262.70
Total liabilities 2,618.25 42.39 2,660.64
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 4,491.64 (3.08) 4,488.59

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.



‘Taraashna Services Limited (Formerly known as Taraashna Services Private Limited)
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5 Reconciliation of the assets and Habilities presented in the balance sheet prepared as per Previous GAAP and as per Ind AS as at
March 31, 2018 is us follown:

Description Notes to first time As Per Ind AS
adoption Previous GAAP* adjustments As PerInd A5
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 200.28 - 200.28
Other intangible assets 4.49 - 4.49
Financial assets -
Loans Note 1 1423 (5.89 8.34
Other financial assets 1,628.06 - 1,628.06
Current tax assets (net) 781.17 - 781.17
Deferred tax assets (net) Note 4 348.32 2317 371.50
Other non-current assets Note 1 24.35 4.36 28.71
Total non-current assets 3,000.91 21.65 3,022,55
Current assets
Financial assets
Loans Note 1 19.23 (0.82) 18.41
Trade receivables 1,158.46 1,158.46
Cash and cash equivalents Note 1 1,496.02 (0.00) 1,496.02
Other bank balances Note 1 694.63 27.53 722,16
Other financial assets 38.45 (27.53) 10.92
Other current assets Note 1 74.04 (4.51) 69.53
‘Total current assets 3,480.83 (5.33) 3,475.49
TOTAL ASSETS 6,481.73 16,31 6,498.05
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 1,244.03 - 1,244.03
Other equity 1,154.91 (56.42) 1,098.48
Total equity 2,398.94 (56.42) 2,342.51
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Note 1 456.02 9.39) 446.62
Provisions 97.62 - 97.62
Total non-current liabilites 553.64 (9.39) 544.25
Current ligbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 8.87 . 8.87
Trade payables 1,654.67 - 1,654.67
Other financial liabilities Note 1 1,688.81 82.13 1,770.94
Other current liabilities 163.83 - 163.83
Provisions Note 2 12.98 - 12.98
Total current liabilities 3,529.16 82.13 3,611.29
Total liabilities 4,082.80 72.74 4,155.53
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 6,481.73 16.31 6,498.05

* Reclassification of respective assets and liabilities in accordance with applicable IND AS have been made in previous GAAP Figures
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6 Reconciliation of the income and expenses presented in the statement of profit and loss prepared as per Indian GAAP and as per

Ind AS as at March 31, 2018 is as follows:

As Per Ind AS
Description Previous GAAP* adjustments AsPerlnd AS
I. Income
Revenue from operations 5,335.46 - 5,335.46
Other income Note 1 4739 2.93 50.33
Total income 5,382.86 2,93 5,385.79
II. Expenses
Employee benefits expense Note 1 3,027.72 13.70 3,041.42
Finance costs Note 1 232.66 1.58 234.24
Depreciation and amortisation expense 68.27 - 68.27
Other expenses Note 2 3,032.12 16.84 3,048.96
Total expenses 6,360,77 3212 6,392.80
III. Profit/(Loss) before tax (II-I) (977.91) (29.19) (1,007.10)
Current tax
Current tax . -
Deferred tax expense/(credit) Note 4 (310.66) (8.50) (319.16)
Eaclier years taxes/(refunds) (3.88) - (3.88)
IV. Total tax expense (314.54) (8.50) (323.05)
V. Net Profit/(loes) for the year (663.36) {20.69) (684.05)
VI. Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefi Note 3 - 13.70 13.70
Income tax relating to these items Note 4 - (3.99) (3.99)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year - 9.71 9.71
VII Total comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (663.36) (10.98) (674.34)

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpase of this note.
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Note- 1

Measurement of financial assets and financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incutred towards origination of botrowings to be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on
initial recognition. 'These costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the interest
expense by applying the effective interest rate method.

Under previous GAAP, financial assets and financial liabilities were initially recognized at transaction price. Subsequently, any finance
income/costs was recognized based on contractual terms. Under Ind AS, such financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value and
subscquently carried at amortised cost determined using the effective intercst rate. Any difference between transaction price and fair value
affects profit and loss unless it quantifies for recognition as some other type of asset or liability.

Note - 2

Recognition of firet loes default guarantee expenses

Fiirst loss default guarantee conteacts are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse the bank and financial
institution for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions, for whom the Company acts as ‘Business Correspondent’.

These contracts are mitially measured at faie value and subsequently measure at higher of:

* The amount of loss allowance (calculated as described in policy for impairment of financial assets)

* Maximum amount payable as on the reporting date to the respective bank/financial institution which is based an the amount of loans where
fiest loss default puarantee has been invoked as per the terms mentioned in agreement with the respective bank/ financial institution.

Further, the maximum liability is restricted to the cash outflow agreed in the contract.

Note- 3

Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard
requires of permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit
and loss as ‘other comprehensive income’ includes re-measurements of defined benefit plans ‘The concept of other comprehensive income did
not exist under previous GAAP.

Note— 4

Tax effect of adjustments

Under Previous GAAP, deferred tax was accounted using the income statement approach, on the timing differences between the taxable profit
and accounting profits for the period. Under Ind AS, deferred tax is recognized following balance sheet approach on the temporary differences
between the carrying amount of asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. In addition, various transitional adjustments has also led
to recognition of deferred taxes on new temporary differences.

Note- §

Retained earnings
Retained eamnings as at 1 April 2017 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified 1 follows:

Particulars Borrowings

01 April 2017 87,058,672

Cash flows: 13,303,494

Non cash:

- Others (493,521)

31 March 2018 99,868,645

Cash flows: (70,020,835)

Mon cash:

- Others 767,982

31 March 2019 30,615,792

Non-cash items "Others" in reconciliation above rep dj of ion costs.
Assets hypothecated as security

The casrying amounts of assets hypothecated as security are:

Particul 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March2017

Non-cument

First charge 2,162,784 3,144,952 753,102
Total ussets hypotk d as ity 2,162,784 3,144,952 753,102
Segment Reporting

The Comp p in a single reportable segment i.e. busi pondent, which has similar risks and returns for the purpose of Ind AS
108 “Operating seg " and is idered to be the only reportable busi g The Company derives its major revenues from business

correspondent activities and its customers are widespread. Further, The Company is operating in India which is considered as a single
geographical segment.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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